Brigham Young University Law School

BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs (1965 –)

1983

Layne R. Meacham v. Great Basin Youth Service: Brief of Appellant

NATURE OF CASE

This is an action for breach of a written contract for social services.

STATEMENT OF FACTS:

On December 23, 1982, the parties entered into a contract for personal services whereby Plaintiff/Appellant was to provide social services in 1983 for certain troubled youth as part of the services requested by a contract which the Defendant/Respondent had with the State of Utah. The contract provided that Plaintiff/Appellant would be paid a total of Twenty-four Thousand Dollars (\$24,000) as he performed services at the rate of Fifty Dollars (\$50) per hour, but not to exceed Three Thousand Dollars (\$3,000) in any one (1) month, but if not paid that much in any month the difference was to accumulate so he would be paid a total of Eighteen Thousand Dollars (\$18,000) by June 30, 1983, if he was ready, willing and able to provide the

requested services in that amount in the first half of 1983 and Six Thousand Dollars (\$6,000) by December 31, 1983, subject to the same availability requirement. Difficulties insued as a result of the Defendant/Respondent not requesting any services of the Plaintiff/Appellant prior to the termination of the contract by Defendant/Respondent letter of February 10, 1983, except for two (2) assignments (Findings of Fact Nos. 2 and 3) which involved a total of five (5) hours of services (see Findings of Fact No. 5). In connection with an advance of One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$1,500) made by Defendant/ Respondent to Plaintiff/Appellant on January 10, 1983, when the first assignment was made, the Plaintiff/Appellant made an unauthorized phone call to a state official requesting that the State advance certain monies to the Defendant/Respondent (Findings of Fact No. 3). On January 25, 1983, (date not specified in Findings of fact, but no dispute in evidence as to when it occurred) Plaintiff/Appellant met with one Steve Trotter, a youth for which the Defendant/Respondent had responsibility without first contacting said youth's home parent or assigned social worker (Findings of Fact No. 6). On January 31, 1983, Defendant/Respondent requested Plaintiff/Appellant to move into an interior office in the buildings where both parties had their offices at 9136 South State Street and Plaintiff/Appellant refused to do so (he contended his contract did not require it and it would be too expensive to move all his furniture). (See Findings of Fact No. 4.) Without making any express conclusion of law that the above acts of Defendant breached the contract in question or that the breaches were material so as to warrant termination of the contract the Court concluded that "Defendant justifiably terminated 'for cause' the December 1982 contract with Plaintiff."

DISPOSITION BELOW

After a bench trial on the merits, the lower Court concluded that Defendants terminated the subject contract for cause and denied any relief to Plaintiff for breach of contract or for anticipatory breach of contract.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPRAL

Plaintiff/Appellant seeks to have this Court reverse the lower Court's conclusion that the subject contract was terminated for cause and to remand the case to the lower Court to ascertain the amount of judgment that should be entered in favor of Plaintiff/Appellant and against Defendant/Respondent since Defendant/Respondent has failed, negleted, and refused to pay the Twenty-two Thousand Five Bundred Dollars (\$22,500) balance due on the contract for services to be performed prior to January 1, 1984, less the appropriate offset due to mitigation or costs saved from not fulfilling the services Plaintiff/Appellant was obligated to perform if asked to do so.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE PARTIAL BREACHES OF CONTRACT, IF ANY, SET FORTH IN THE TRIAL COURT'S FINDINGS OF FACT WERE NOT SO MATERIAL AS TO WARRANT THE LOWER COURT IN TERMINATING THE CONTRACT IN QUESTION

Section 241 of the second Restatement of Contract sets forth the applicable principle in such cases. It reads as follows:

Section 241 Circumstances Significant in Determining Whether a Failure is Material

In determining whether a failure to render or to offer performance is material, the following circumstances are significant:

(a) the extent to which the injured party will be deprived of the benefit which he reasonably expected;

- (b) the extent to which the injured party can be adequately compensated for the part of that benefit of which he will be deprived;
- (c) the extent to which the party failing to perform or to offer to perform will suffer forfeiture;
- (d) the likelihood that the party failing to perform or to offer to perform will cure his failure, taking account of all the circumstances including any reasonable assurances;
- (e) the extent to which the behavior of the party failing to perform or to offer to perform comports with standards of good faith and fair dealing.

In the case of <u>Prudential Federal Savings & Loan Association vs.</u>

<u>Hartford Acc. & Ind. Co.</u>, 325 P2d 899(1958) this Court cited the first

Restatment of Contracts, Section 274 and 313 with favor. In that case the opinion on this point reads as follows:

Furthermore, it is a recognized principle of contract law that a breach of an insubstantial nature, which is severable and does not vitally change the transaction, does not release the other party completely from performing his obligations under the contract, but gives rise to a right for damages for any loss occasioned thereby. This \$2,000 was allowed as an offset in favor of Cassady and Hartford and that is all they are entitled to. (Footnote omitted).

In the instant case none of the breaches of contract, if in fact they were breaches of contract, were substantial, all were minor and certainly did not vitally change the transaction which was a contract to render social services. These conclusions find support in the following facts taking each arguable breach in the order of the Court's findings.

Phone calls of January 10, 1983 to Russ Van Vleet (R58, Findings of Fact No. 3). Although the Court cited the protion of the contract which prohibited Plaintiff/Appellant from any conduct which would "tend to complicate or otherwise negatively effect services relationship with said

department" thus implying that this call violated that provision, the Court did not make any express finding to that effect and the testimony of the Defendant/Respondent's director, Kent Burke, was to the contrary. When he was asked, "Did Mr. Van Vleet say anything to you that would indicate that that was creating an adversary relationship between you and the State of Utah," he responded, "he thought it was very strange that Layne would be calling about that, yes." (T.4) Furthermore, Mr. Burke admitted testifying in his deposition that, "I didn't remember the telephone call." (T.5)

Request of January 31, 1983 to Move Offices (R.59, Findings of Fact No.4). Nothing in the contract required Plaintiff/Appellant to work at any particular location much less in a particular office. The Court did not find that it did. In fact the finding in question faults Plaintiff/Appellant for renting space already rented by Defendant/Respondent, an issue which is collateral to the contract in question.

Home Parent/Foster Parent Manual Submitted January 22, 1983 (R.59) Finding No. 5.) Here again the Trial Court makes no finding that the manual in question failed to meet contract specifications. In fact, the contract did not require Plaintiff/Appellant to produce any such manual although the assignment was a proper one and within the general scope of the work required by the contract (R. 4 and 5.) This finding merely established the fact that Plaintiff/Appellant could receive at most Two Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$250) under the contract and he had not earned the balance of the One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$1,500) advance he had received at the time of the assignment. Plaintiff/Appellant has never claimed that he had earned the One Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$1,250) difference, but only that he was guaranteed sufficient work to earn the contract total of Twenty-four Thousand

Dollars (\$24,000). The fact that he elected not to "reinvent the wheel," but to use another's work product that he had compiled caused no injury to Defendant/Respondent, but actually gave it the means of providing that much more social services for the youth for whom the state had contracted. (Ex. P-10.)

Appellant's Meeting With Steve Trotter (R.60, Finding No. 6.) Plaintiff/Appellant took this young man to breakfast after learning he was not going to school and was unsupervised. He did that after he was unable to contact the boy's parents and the social worker assigned to that boy. His testimony that he had permission of Defendant/Respondent's director to contact the youth under the agency's program was uncontradicted. After being told no contact should be made without express parental or social worker permission, he did not do so but was frustrated by not having been given any assignments by the social worker in question. No claim is made that this contact with this boy had any actual or even potentially detrimental consequences.

Whether taken individually or in their entirety, these four incidents certainly did not involve the main purpose of the contract, to wit delivery of social services to troubled youth. In fact, Plaintiff/Appellant's eagerness to perform the work which constituted to reason for the contract seems to have been a source of friction between the parties. (See Exhibits "P14-P26.")

Plaintiff/Appellant submits that the foregoing shows that circumstances (a) as applied to the facts of this case favors Plaintiff/Appellant.

As for circumstance (b), it seems clear that any breach by Plaintiff/Appellant would be adequately compensated in damages and could

simply be witheld from the Twenty-two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$22,500) yet due in his contract.

Circumstance (c) is the single most critical factor in this particular case as the hardship upon Plaintiff/Appellant of losing Twenty-two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$22,500) is most disproportionate to the minor breaches and any injury caused Defendant/Respondent by them.

As for circumstance (d), there is no dispute that Plaintiff/Appellant was at all times ready, willing and able to perform the work assigned to him and was pressing Defendant/Respondent for assignments. (Ex. P-19, P-23, P-26.)

As for circumstance (e), the behavior of Plaintiff/Appellant should be classified as innocent as to the phone call to Russ Van Vleet, in compiling the parenting manual and in taking Steve Trotter to breakfast. His refusal to move his office was willful, but within his rights as the contract was one of an independent contractor not one of employment. In short, he did act in good faith and met the standards of fair dealing.

Circumstance (f), would favor relief on appeal as Defendant/
Respondent has control of Plaintiff/Appellant's performance in that payment
under the contact is made as services are rendered.

The most applicable comment from case precedent which Plaintiff/
Appellant has found is his from M & W Development Inc. vs. El Paso Water Co.
634 P2d 166 (Kansas app., 1981). It reads as follows:

The record contains substantial competent evidence to support the trial judge's finding that El Paso breached the contract by not issuing notes to M & W. We cannot say, however, that "material breach" justifying rescission of the contract has occurred, as was concluded by the trial judge. What justifies rescission of a contract was considered in In re Estate of Johnson, 202

Kan. 684, 691 92, 452 P.2d 286 (1969), wherein the Supreme Court commented:

"The right to rescind a contract is extreme and does not necessarily arise from every breach. To warrant rescission, the breach must be material and the failure to perform so substantial as to defeat the object of the parties in making the agreement. A breach which goes to only a part of the consideration, which is incidental and subordinate to the main purpose of a contract, does not warrant a rescission. (Baron vs. Lyman, 136 Kan. 842, 18 P.2d 137; 17 Am.Jur.2d, Contracts Section 504; 17A C.J.S., Contracts Section 422 (1); Corbin on Contracts Section 1104.)" (Emphasis supplied.)

CONCLUSION

This case should be remanded to the lower Court to enter judgment in favor of Plaintiff/Appellant in against Defendant/Respondent for the contract balance less income received by Plaintiff/Appellant for like services rendered other or which should have been rendered to others in mitigation of damages during the contract period.