1983

Layne R. Meacham v. Great Basin Youth Service: Brief of Respondent

NATURE OF CASE

This is a claim and counterclaim regarding a termination of a written contract for professional services (a copy of the contract is attached hereto as Appendix "A").

DISPOSITION OF CASE IN LOWER COURT

After a bench trial on the merits, the lower Court granted Defendant-Respondent's counterclaim for declaratory judgment by finding that the subject contract was properly terminated for cause as per the terms of the contract, that there was not any breach of the subject contract by Defendant-Respondent, and denied both specific performance or damages to Plaintiff-Appellant.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendant-Respondent seeks to have this Court uphold and affirm the lower Court's decision in granting declaratory judgment by finding that the contract was terminated for cause and to deny Plaintiff-Appellant's appeal to reverse the lower Court's decision and enter a judgment for damages.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Defendant-Respondent adopts the statement of facts set forth in Plaintiff-Appellant's brief except as follows:

(1) Difficulties did not insue as a result of Defendant-Respondent's not having requested any services of Plaintiff-Appellant prior to the termination of the contract as stated in Plaintiff-Appellant's statement of facts (Plaintiff-Appellant's brief, p. 2). The difficulties insued as a result of Plaintiff-Appellant's failure to complete the two assignments given him (trial transcript, p. 121, Findings of Fact No. 2); the unauthorized exchange with a state official in the Department of Social Services in direct violation of one of the provisions of the contract (Findings of Fact No. 3); the submission of 57 pages of photocopied materials from a U.S. Justice Department publication as a Home Parent/ Foster Parent Manual compiled by Plaintiff-Appellant (Findings of Fact No. 5); the visit with the youth Steve Trotter, a juvenile for which Defendant-Respondent had supervisory responsibility, without contacting the home parent or the social worker assigned to the youth (Findings of Fact No. 6); and, Plaintiff-Appellant's failure to move into one of Defendant-Respondent's interior offices at 9136 South State Street from an office on the same floor for which Defendant-Respondent also paid the rent.

(2) Plaintiff-Appellant's brief states that the Court did not make any express conclusion of law that the acts of the Plaintiff-Appellant "breached the contract in question or that the breaches were material." (Plaintiff-Appellant's brief, p. 2). Plaintiff-Appellant misconstrues the law and is attempting to argue it in the "statement of facts." Such an express finding is not necessary and even if it were, there is ample evidence demonstrating a material breach by Plaintiff-Appellant. (See Points 2 and 3 *infra*.)

ARGUMENT

POINT 1

PLAINTIFF-APPELLANT HAS NOT PRESENTED ANY ARGUMENTS WHICH WOULD SUPPORT A FINDING THAT THE LOWER COURT DID NOT HAVE A REASONABLE BASIS FOR ITS CONCLUSIONS

On appeal, Plaintiff-Appellant's sole argument for reversal of the lower Court's decision is that the lower Court misconstrued the evidence in finding that the Defendant-Respondent properly terminated the contract "for cause" because of the Plaintiff-Appellant's conduct. The Plaintiff-Appellant attempts to reconstruct the evidence in a light most favorable to him. The standard of review of lower Court decisions is well established and uncontroverted.

This Court stated in Nielsen v. Chin-Hsien Wang, 613 P.2d 512, 514 (Utah 1980) that:

The findings and conclusions of the District Court must be affirmed unless there is no reasonable basis in the evidence to support them (footnote omitted). Further, the evidence and all inferences that fairly and reasonably might be drawn therefrom must be viewed in a light most favorable to the judgment entered (footnote omitted).

Again in 1981, this Court reiterated the presumption in favor of a lower Court's decision. Piacitelli v. Southern Utah State College, 636 P.2d 1063, 1067 (Utah 1981).

On appeal, this Court must consider all evidence in the light most favorable to the trial court's findings of fact. Those findings are entitled to a presumption of correctness and may not be overturned so long as they are supported by substantial evidence in the record. (Citations omitted)

Both of these standards were most recently reaffirmed by this Court in Hal Taylor Associates v. Unionamerica, Inc., 657 P.2d 743, 747 (Utah 1982).

Plaintiff-Appellant cites each of the findings of fact and attempts to either construe the evidence such that the finding is incorrect or fault the lower Court for not

expressly stating that each finding of fact was a breach by the Plaintiff-Appellant of the contract.

The issues and evidence were fully presented and argued at trial. At the close of trial, the Court stated that "I have reviewed the exhibits that were received by the Court. I have reviewed your trial Memorandum, Mr. Hansen. I have reviewed the file before trial this morning, and now having heard the evidence . . . The court is constrained to find that on the basis of evidence that taken together, the actions or inactions of the Plaintiff, if you will, constitute a course of conduct contrary to the fostering of the type of relations required under the contract of December 23, 1982 to mutually benefit both parties." (Trial transcript, p. 120).

The lower Court further concluded that the findings of fact were the basis for the proper termination by stating in the conclusions of law that, "Based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact . . . (1) the totality of the facts convince the Court by a preponderance of the evidence that defendant justifiably terminated 'for cause' the December 23, 1982 contract with Plaintiff." (Conclusion of Law no. 1).

The trial Court clearly took into account all of the evidence in rendering its decision. Plaintiff-Appellant should not be allowed to rehash the evidence on appeal. The Plaintiff-Appellant has presented nothing which would lead this Court to find "no reasonable basis in the evidence to support" the lower Court's conclusions.

POINT 2

PLAINTIFF-APPELLANT MISCONSTRUES THE EVIDENCE IN ATTEMPTING TO SHOW THAT THE ACTS OF PLAINTIFF-APPELLANT WERE MINOR IN NATURE AND NOT INVOLVING THE MAIN PURPOSE OF THE CONTRACT

Plaintiff-Appellant cites four (4) of the situations as found in the findings of fact:

- (1) Phone call of January 10, 1983 to Russ Van Vleet (Findings of Fact No. 3).

Plaintiff-Appellant notes that the finding of fact cites the provision of the contract

prohibiting contact by Plaintiff-Appellant with the State Department of Social Services but then argues that the finding of fact did not make any express finding that the call violated the provision. However, it is beyond argument that the citing of the provision right after stating that Plaintiff-Appellant made the call clearly indicates that the lower Court held that it was a violation of the provision. Plaintiff-Appellant admits that it is implied (Plaintiff-Appellant's brief, p. 5). As stated above, the rule of review is that all inferences must be viewed "in a light most favorable to the judgment entered."

Plaintiff-Appellant also argues that the testimony of Defendant-Respondent's director, Kent Burke, is that it did not violate the contract provision. This allegation is difficult to comprehend since Plaintiff-Appellant quotes Mr. Burke correctly (Plaintiff-Appellant's brief, p. 5) in responding in the affirmative to the question, "Did Mr. Van Vleet say anything to you that would indicate that that was creating an adversary relationship between you and the State of Utah?" Mr. Burke's response was, "He thought it was very strange that Layne would be calling about that, yes." (Trial transcript, p. 64; emphasis added). In fact, in previous testimony, Mr. Burke made it very clear that he felt the unauthorized telephone call by Plaintiff-Appellant had a negative effect. Mr. Burke was asked, "After you were informed that Mr. Meacham had contacted the State of Utah, did you have any concern or feeling about that?" His answer was, "Yes, I did." He was then asked, "What was your concern?" He responded, "I felt like he ought not to be doing that type of thing. We had asked him not to, and it put us in a bad light in the sense that I felt like he was explaining at least to them that we didn't have the money to pay him or we are not managing our company well enough to meet our bills."

Then, Plaintiff-Appellant's brief quotes Mr. Burke as admitting at trial that in his deposition that, "I didn't remember the telephone call." (Plaintiff-Appellant's brief, p. 5). This is inserted in an attempt to show that the telephone call by Plaintiff-Appellant

to the state official was inconsequential because Mr. Burke did not even recall it at his deposition. This quote completely misconstrues Mr. Burke's testimony and takes it out of context. In fact, the telephone call Mr. Burke is referring to is not Plaintiff-Appellant's call to the state but its his own phone call to Mr. Van Vleet regarding Plaintiff-Appellant's previous unauthorized call.

By Mr. Hansen:

Q Mr. Burke, how long was it after the time that you learned or Mr. Meacham's phone call to Mr. Russell Van Vleet that you contacted Mr. Van Vleet?

A I believe it was probably a couple of days before I called him and asked him about it, and then I talked with him again about two or three weeks later at a youth corrections meeting.

Q In your deposition, didn't you testify that it could have been three weeks or so?

A Yes. At the time, I didn't remember the telephone call.

Q So you are saying between the time of your deposition that was taken on March 8th and the present time, you now recall a phone call within two days of that that you hadn't —

A I believe it was two or three days after that.

(Trial transcript, p. 67; emphasis added).

(2) Request of January 31, 1983 to Move Offices (Findings of Fact No. 4). Plaintiff-Appellant argues that the request to move offices was not part of the contract and that the lower "Court did not find that it did" (Plaintiff-Appellant's brief, p. 5). Plaintiff-Appellant again attempts to reargue the evidence and the findings of fact. The Finding of Fact No. 4 was clearly a part of the basis for the lower Court's decision as all of the findings of fact were as found in Conclusion of Law No. 1 quoted above.

There is substantial evidence to support the conclusion that Plaintiff-Appellant's unwillingness to move from an office paid for by Defendant-Respondent to another closer office also paid for by Defendant-Respondent so that he could interact better and develop a better working relationship with Defendant-Respondent's staff was one of the actions or inactions of Plaintiff-Appellant which gave rise to the proper termination of the contract. (Trial transcript, pp. 49-53).

(3) Home Parent/Foster Parent Manual Submitted January 22, 1983 (Findings of Fact No. 5). Again Plaintiff-Appellant argues that there is no finding that the "manual failed to meet contract specifications." (Plaintiff-Appellant's brief, p. 5). However, Plaintiff-Appellant then goes on to admit that while the manual was not an express provision of the contract, the assignment to do the manual "was a proper one and within the general scope of the work required by the contract." (Plaintiff-Appellant's brief, p. 5). The Trial Court did find that the manual did not meet the parameters of the assignment. As quoted above, the Court based its conclusion of law on the findings of fact. Furthermore, the Court at the conclusion of trial expressly stated that the manual episode in and of itself might have been sufficient to justify the termination (trial transcript, p. 120). This conclusion is clearly supported by the evidence, when interpreted in a light most favorable to support the judgment. It shows that Plaintiff-Appellant only did one hour of work on the manual for which he was prepaid \$1,500 (trial transcript, p. 86); he did no more than photocopy 57 pages of someone else's work and type a cover page (trial transcript, pp. 34-36, 55, 79, 86; Exhibits D-29 and D-30); the Defendant-Respondent already had a copy of the entire book from which Plaintiff-Appellant copied (trial transcript, p. 35); Plaintiff-Respondent initially attempted to take credit for the work and act as if he had spent several hours on it (trial transcript, pp. 36, 37); and it did not contain the information required by the assignment (trial transcript,

pp. 13-14, 31, 57; Exhibit D-28).

(4) Plaintiff-Appellant's Meeting with Steve Trotter (Findings of Fact No. 6). Plaintiff-Appellant does not allege that Plaintiff-Appellant actually contacted the youth's home parent or social worker prior to making contact with the boy nor that he was not aware of the Defendant-Respondent's basic rule that he should make contact with them prior to seeing any of the youth. (Letter to Plaintiff-Appellant explaining rule prior to his seeing Steve Trotter, Exhibit P-5). He alleges that the evidence was uncontradicted that Defendant-Respondent's director orally gave permission for Plaintiff-Appellant to see Steve Trotter. There is evidence that clearly contradicts this. Mr. Burke, Defendant-Respondent's director, was asked "Did you even tell him [Plaintiff-Appellant] in that meeting that he did not have to first talk with the home parent before he went out and met with the youth?" His answer was, "No. I would never say that." He was then asked, "Did you ever tell him that before he talked, that he did not have to talk with the social worker, Roy Hussey or Matt Calpooa before he went out and talked with Steve Trotter or any youth." He responded, "No. It's standard procedure to contact these people and to go through them and provide them any kind of interaction with the youth." (Trial transcript, pp. 48, 49.)

Next Plaintiff-Appellant states that "no claim is made that this contact with this boy had any actual or even potentially detrimental consequence." However, Mr. Burke testified that he discovered that Plaintiff-Appellant had not followed proper procedure when he found out that the social worker "was upset and the home parent was wondering what was going on." (Trial transcript, p. 47). Furthermore, when Mr. Burke was asked by Plaintiff-Appellant's counsel if Steve Trotter had made any negative comment about the contact, he responded, "Only in the sense that he was unsure of who Layne [Plaintiff-Appellant] was and why he was coming over to talk to him, which caused anxiety, I

suppose." (Trial transcript, p. 62.)

Plaintiff-Appellant does not make any mention of Plaintiff-Appellant's failure to perform an assignment to begin a home parent training and youth counseling program given to him by letter on January 20, 1983. (Findings of Fact no. 2). The lower Court specifically found that this assignment was never completed. (Trial transcript, p. 121.)

Plaintiff-Appellant attempts to characterize his conduct as insubstantial and minor and not involving the main purpose of the contract, i.e., to provide home parent/proctor training, youth counseling, and program development as needed. However, the evidence clearly shows that in a matter of one month from when the contract began, Plaintiff-Appellant made a contact expressly prohibited by the contract, failed in an assignment to develop a training manual for which he was prepaid, violated one of the basic rules of youth counseling by not contacting the home parent and social worker, failed to develop a schedule for home parent training and youth counseling as assigned and refused to change offices supplied by Defendant-Respondent in the same building on the same floor in order to have better interaction with Defendant-Respondent's staff. Each of these goes to the very heart of the contract and the type of relationship needed in a contract for professional services.

POINT 3

THE TERMINATION WAS PROPERLY BASED ON REASON- ABLE GROUNDS AND DONE IN GOOD FAITH AS REQUIRED UNDER A TERMINATION "FOR CAUSE" PROVISION

Plaintiff-Appellant cites two (2) cases, M & W Development, Inc. v. El Paso Water Co., 634 P.2d 166 (Kan. 1981) and Prudential Federal Savings & Loan Assoc. v. Hartford Acc. & Ind. Co., 325 P.2d 899 (Utah 1958) and the Restatement of Contracts 2nd, Section 241 as setting forth the applicable law in judging whether the acts of Plaintiff-Appellant were justification for the termination by Defendant-Respondent. However, closer

examination of the lower Court's decision and applicable contract law shows that the two (2) cases and the restatement section are not on point.

Nevertheless, assuming for a moment that they do set forth the controlling law on the issue, it is clear from the evidence that Plaintiff-Appellant's conduct would have constituted a material breach. (See Point 2, supra). Unlike the subject contract, the breaches alleged in the cited cases clearly did not go to the heart of either contract. In Prudential at 903, this Court affirmed the lower Court's decision in finding that a construction performance bond and contract for \$763,000 was not terminated by a minor breach when the other party failed to provide power for a short period at the beginning of construction which "did not have the effect of preventing construction or substantially [delay] the project." Likewise, in M & W Development the breach was not material because the rest of the contract was "fully executed." Unlike those contracts, the subject contract was a contract for personal services and the acts of Plaintiff-Appellant clearly meet the test of materiality as set forth in the cases as well as the restatement section cited.

Notwithstanding the fact that Plaintiff-Appellant's actions would be considered a material breach, material breach is not the proper standard here. This case involves an exercise of an express termination clause. Neither the cases cited nor does the restatement section deal with a termination provision.

The Restatement of Contracts 2nd recognizes the difference between a cancellation because of a breach and a termination pursuant to a contract provision. Restatement of Contracts 2nd Section 283(a) states that a "termination . . . occurs when either party pursuant to a power created by agreement or law put an end to the contract otherwise than for its breach" while a "cancellation . . . occurs when either party puts an end to the contract for breach by the other." (emphasis added) Thus, this case does not

involve a cancellation, it involves a termination.

There is ample authority holding that "grounds for termination of a contract under express provisions therein are controlled by such provisions, which ordinarily will be enforced according to their terms . . ." 17A C.J.S., § 399, p. 484. See also 17 Am Jur 2d, §495, p. 968 and 6 Corbin on Contracts §1266, p. 66.

In this case, the contract provision provided that the contract "may be terminated at any time prior to the termination date for cause." While the clause in question is not often found in contracts coming before the courts, all of the cases Defendant-Respondent found have been consistent in their interpretation of the clause. Two (2) of the cases which have dealt with the meaning of "for cause" are Quick v. Southern Churchman Co. Inc., 199 S.E. 489 (Vir. 1938) and R. J. Cardinal Co. v. Ritchie, 32 Cal.Rptr. 545 (Cal. App. 1963)

In Quick the Court explained that:

It is obvious that 'just cause' or 'good cause' is not synonymous with legal cause . . . 'just cause' or 'good cause' cannot be reduced to a legal certainty. To be effective, it must relate to the circumstances relied on. The grounds upon which it is based must be reasonable, and there should not be an abuse of the conferred right. It must be a fair and honest cause or reason, regulated by good faith on the part of the party exercising the power. It limits the party to the exercise of good faith, based upon just and fair grounds as distinguished from an arbitrary power. (emphasis added)

In R. J. Cardinal at 558 and 559, the Court analyzed the words "for cause," "for just cause" or "for good cause" at length, citing the Quick case and several other cases. The Court concluded its discussion by explaining that "we are of the opinion that a right to terminate 'for cause' or 'for good cause' means upon reasonable grounds assigned in good faith."

The Trial Court correctly understood this principle of reasonable grounds and good faith. It stated at the conclusion of the trial that "on the basis of evidence that taken

together the actions or inactions of the Plaintiff, if you will, constitute a course of conduct contrary to the fostering of the type of relations required under the contract of December 23, 1982 to mutually benefit both parties. The Court believes, based on the candor of the witnesses and the testimony and from the demeanor of the witnesses, that the defendant, through its agent, Mr. Burke, did act in good faith. The voluminous exchange of correspondence flowing from the defendant makes many references to a cooperative and even forgiving attitude by the defendant. The Court believes that there were, and evidence supports that there were at least two separate assignments . . . Therefore, the Court finds that the termination of the 10th of February of 1983 was proper and based upon sufficient grounds to fall within that termination provision of the contract in question." (Trial transcript, pp. 120, 121; emphasis added).

CONCLUSION

There is a reasonable basis and substantial evidence to support the lower Court's conclusion that based on the conduct of Plaintiff-Appellant, the Defendant-Respondent acted reasonably and in good faith in terminating the contract in question "for cause" as per the terms of the contract and this Court should affirm that decision.